Tanunda Netball Club



2013 SEASON

AMUALBERORT

Presented to the members and players for the

<u>Annual General Meeting</u>

To be held at the Netball Clubrooms

<u>Monday November 18th</u> at <u>7.00pm</u>



TAKE NOTICE that the **Annual General meeting** of the Tanunda Netball Club will be held at the Netball Clubrooms on the **18**th **November 2013**, immediately following the Special General meeting

AGENDA

- 1. Welcome
- 2. Apologies
- 3. Minutes of 2012 AGM adopted
- 4. Reports:

President

Treasurer

Coaches

5. Elections:

President

Vice-President

Secretary

Treasurer

Committee members (7)

Auditor

Patroness

Public Officer

DATED: 24th October, 2013

Debbie Miles SECRETARY

Season 2013

President: Toby Mifflin Vice-President: Jeanette Hooper Secretary: **Debbie Miles** Treasurer: Dianne Bartsch

Committee

Alex Hoffmann Members: **Debbie Scott** Sarah Bittner Linda Morgan

> Elle Moreton Jo Buck Mandy Martin

Patroness: Mrs. Levene Fechner

Jeanette Hooper & Jo Buck BLGNA Elected Director (TNC): Toby Mifflin **BLGNA** Delegates:

Canteen Co-ordinator: Rachel Edson Umpires Co-ordinator: Alex Hoffmann

Records Officer: Debbie Miles Uniforms/Merchandise: Linda Morgan & Debbie Scott

Communications: **Debbie Miles** Junior Development: Jo Buck

Sponsorship: Debbie Miles & Dianne Bartsch Social Co-ordinator: Elle Moreton & Mandy Martin

Life Members:

Mrs. Kay Hueppauff †, Mrs. Edna Behrndt †, Mrs. Thelma Murphy †, Mrs. Marjorie Lehmann †,

Mrs. Sue Fuller, Mrs. Lynne Lindner, Mrs. Kathy Marschall, Mrs. Cheryl Kraehenbuhl, Mrs. Joanne Buck,

Mrs. Gayle Dawkins, Mrs. Lyn Hoklas, Mrs. Debbie Miles, Mrs. Dianne Bartsch, Ms. Karen Fox

OUR SINCERE THANKS TO ALL OUR SPONSORS FOR SEASON 2013

MAJOR SPONSORS









GOLD SPONSORS

1918 Bistro & Grill Coz Wine Rogasch Windows The Co-op Store

Amanti Pizza & Pasta Lynas Auto Group Schild Estate Wines Valley Hotel / Tanunda Hotel

Barossa Real Estate OB Transport Tanunda Cellars

SILVER SPONSORS

Barossa Valley Toyota Robert & Gayle Dawkins Irrigation Works W.E.M.S.

Dito Plus Elders Insurance Barossa Tanunda Foodland

BRONZE SPONSORS

Clayton Scott Funerals La Buona Vita Priceline Pharmacy Tanunda Apex Bakery Barossa Chemplus Heinrich Cooperage Lewis & Shane Lawyers **Rockford Wines Bartsch Homes** Kvm & Robvn Lienert Office National Barossa JK & TM Rasche Mechanical

Lindsay & Shirley Stevens BGI Building Group Peter Lehmann Wines

SUPPORTER

Heidenreich Estate

Barossa, Light & Gawler Netball Association **2013** Presentation

BLGNA Team Of the Year

Senior 2: Best & Fairest Heidi Dunn

Intermediate 2: 2nd Runner-Up **Emma Graves**

Junior 2: 2nd Runner-Up Ella Slape

Sub Junior 1: Best & Fairest Sadie Lienert

Sub Junior 2: Best & Fairest Aspen Wood

Sub Junior 3: Best & Fairest Runner-Up Sarah Battersby

porate e

Sub Junior Goal Throwing Trophy



BLGNA Senior 2 Best & Fairest **HEIDI DUNN**



Kate Jolly

SADIE LIENERT



BLGNA Sub Junior 2 Best & Fairest ASPEN WOOD



BLGNA Sub Junior 3 Runner-Up SARAH BATTERSBY

Tanunda Netball Club Awards



JO BUCK
Wohlers Club Person of the Year – 2013
Rachel Noack (Wohlers rep) & Jo Buck



2013 Wohlers

Most Successful Senior Player

Rachel Noack (Wohlers rep), Kate Osborne,

Nerida Allert & Kate Jolly



CAITLIN SCOTT

2013 Thelma Murphy Memorial Trophy

Most Successful Junior Player

Debbie Miles (TNC Secretary) & Caitlin Scott



MICHELLE PITMAN

2013 Marjorie Lehmann Memorial Trophy- Umpires Award

Sharon Seedsman & Michelle Pitman

2013 Carly Ward Memorial Trophy

Every season when Tanunda play Freeling in the intermediate 1 game the team to win the match is awarded the Carly Ward memorial trophy in memory of Carly Ward who was tragically killed in a car accident in June 2000. The significance of hosting this award is because Carly played her last match against Freeling at Tanunda before being tragically killed later that day. It is an important reminder of road safety for young netballers.

This year 2013 score was: Tanunda 63 v Freeling 19



Kate Jolly (Coach), Tanunda Intermediate 1 team with Rosie & Justin Ward

2013 Anniversary Cup

Every season Nuriootpa and Tanunda play for the Anniversary Challenge Cup which alternates between both Club venues every year, the Club to win the most games for the day wins the cup.

This year Tanunda hosted the event on June 15th, **Tanunda won 12 games** to Nuriootpa 3 games

2013 Player Milestones

The Tanunda Netball Club recognizes the milestones achieved by our players. This year the following player's achieved milestone games in our Club and were presented with a token medallion at the senior presentation dinner.

Dianne Bartsch – 400 games

Mel Skarstrom - 250 games

Tracey Hoklas – 250 games

Kelly Buckby – 150 games

Lauren Martin – 150 games

Nicole Owen – 150 games

Mikaela Marshall - 100 games

Alex Miller - 100 games

2013 SA Country Championships

The 71st annual SA Country Championships were held at ETSA Park on the weekend of June 8 -10
Tanunda players selected to play in the 2013 BL&G Netball Association teams were:
U17 team: Sophie Alderslade, Emily Bert Zoe Hoffrichter; U15 team: Lily Hoffrichter & Emma Hartnett;
U13 team: Charlie Bittner, Stella Fraser, Elise Reed & Sadie Lienert; U13 Coach: Jo Buck



L-R: Sophie Alderslade, Emma Hartnett, Lily Hoffrichter, Zoe Hoffrichter, Emily Bert



Back: Stella Fraser, Jo Buck, Charlie Bittner Front: Elise Reed & Sadie Lienert

2013 SA Regional Championships

The Regional Championships are played annually at Netball SA Stadium during the July school holidays.

The competing teams are selected from the eight Regional Academies that run throughout the state from February to October. Teams compete in the 17 & under, 15 & under and 13 & under divisions, with up to 12 players in each team.

The Regional Championships provide an opportunity for the selected players to put into practice the skills that they have learnt at monthly trainings. From these Regional championships, girls can be selected in the Country Development Teams, which provides them with further opportunities to enhance their netball experience.

Tanunda Players selected: 17 & under: Emma Hartnett, Maddie Maitland, Lily Hoffrichter; 13 & under: Stella Fraser & Sadie Lienert

President's Report

2013 has certainly been a great step forward for our club. All in all I am very proud in how the Tanunda Netball Club performed this year as a whole. Our Club's performance this year is a distinct reflection of the effort and commitment of those that have an affiliation and passion for the Tanunda Netball Club.

The Club again participated in the Net Set Go program with a lot of youngsters learning the basics. It is fantastic to see so many new upcoming players getting involved with the Club. Thank you to Dianne Bartsch and all the parents and helpers who assisted in any way during the 10 weeks.

The new offer of coffee from the coffee van was well received especially during those cold and wet mornings.

This season six teams played finals with three teams making the Grand Final. (Sub Junior 1, Sub Junior 2, and Sub Junior 3). Congratulations to all three making the Grand final and especially the Sub 1's and Sub 2's who came home with the silver wear (You Ripper!!).

Congratulations to the players who were selected as Association Representatives this season. Noteworthy are the three Association Best and Fairest winners – Heidi Dunn (Senior 2), Sadie Lienert (Sub Junior 1), and Aspen Wood (Sub Junior 2). We also had Sarah Battersby (Sub Junior 3) Association Runner up best and fairest and Ella Slape (Junior 2) and Emma Graves (Inter 2) 2nd Runner-up best and fairest. Congratulations to Kate Jolly who was selected in the Team of the year. These achievements are a great indicator as to the Club's standing amongst our associations peers.

To all of our umpires your continued support to our club is highly appreciated. Thank you to these individuals for your time and effort.

The commitment of our coaches was inspiring and I would like to thank all coaches for their time and effort to the 2013 season. At times a thankless task we recognise that our coaches hold pivotal roles within the Club. Next year looks very promising.

Most importantly I must thank my fellow committee members for their passion, insight and willingness to contribute to the ongoing success of the Tanunda Netball Club. I would also like to thank their partners for allowing them to do this.

The support shown by all our sponsors is always appreciated and the growth and financial stability of our club is dependent on this continued support. I thank you personally.

I see a very promising future for the Tanunda Netball Club and hope to help and witness the realising of the TNC's full potential.

Toby Mifflin

UMPIRING REPORT

This season Alex Hoffmann took the role as umpire's co-ordinator not aware of the challenge it would be each week in finding appropriate umpires for all 17 teams.

We were fortunate to have some skilled umpires this season: Sharon Seedsman, Gayle Dawkins, Sonya 'Bundy' Day, Jo Rasche, Gabrielle Marschall who capably umpired the senior matches thru the season. With a roster again of all senior players to umpire at least twice thru the season this filled most of the gaps.

Our Club is in the same position as other Clubs where there is a shortage of umpires but this season we did not have to get 'fill-in' umpires from other Clubs which is very encouraging. Next season the committee will organise a mentoring program for old and new umpires to build up our pool and encourage persons interested in having a go.

Sincere thanks to ALEX HOFFMANN as co-ordinator and all those who assisted thru the season, players, coaches, parents and look forward to seeing more whistles out again next season.

Congratulations to MICHELLE PITMAN on being awarded the 2013 Marjorie Lehmann Memorial Trophy- Umpires Award.

Senior 1 Coach: Maria Fraser

The Team: Tamara Crouch Kate Jolly Alicia Keane Team manager: Megan

Samain Brooke Edson Kate Mader Rubi Lienert

Lily Hoffrichter Sarah Parker
Zoe Hoffrichter Jo Pontt

The Winners: Best & Fairest – KATE JOLLY

Best & Fairest Runner-Up –KATE MADER Coaches Trophy – TAMARA CROUCH

After being competitive in 2012 it was very important that the senior one team continued to improve and progress up the ladder. The side had a new look about it with the changes in personnel. It took a few games for the team understanding and confidence to develop and when things started to gel the team performed admirably. We won 3 games in 2012 and improve on that by winning 7 games in 2013 with a couple of others that we let slip.

It was really pleasing from a coaching perspective to see the improvement in the team during the season and to actually be in contention for a final four placing for most of the second round. It was disappointing to fall short of making the finals but we can take much confidence from the progression over the last two seasons.

The team must now focus on continuing to build on what is in place to not only be a finals contender but to aim for that elusive premiership title.

The 2013 senior one side was represented by the following players:

Kate Jolly —Captain of the team and a key player in the centre who suffered a bad ankle injury during the year. It was a great achievement in winning the best and fairest and also being named in the team of the year. Kate will be looking forward to leading the side into the 2014 season with finals aspirations.

Kate Mader – Vice captain and a very important member of the side who had a great season. An excellent defender who performs consistently with her long reach and anticipation being two of her many attributes.

Sarah Parker – A fantastic pick up for the club being a strong, confident and determined defender who is an excellent addition to the team. Her experience and on court leadership are of great value to the side.

Brooke Edson – Took her opportunity to step back up to senior one netball and showed she has what it takes to be a consistent shooter with good conversion rates.

Jo Pontt – Another great pick up for the side adding versatility to the lineup. Played mainly as Goal Attack and did very well in her first season with club.

Tamara Crouch – A very determined and hard working player who gave her all in 2013. Able to play in a number of positions and does her best for the team at all times.

Zoe Hoffrichter – One of the young players who continue to grow in confidence at this level. After suffering a nasty Achilles tendon injury in 2012 she did very well in 2013.

Lily Hoffrichter -Lily has great composure as a shooter and showed that she will be an excellent player for the club for many years to come.

Lauren Martin – Played mainly in the senior two side but was always willing to give 100% when asked to come up to cover unavailable players. Always team and club orientated with a great attitude.

Alicia Keane – Another new player who also added great versatility to the side. She is an experienced player who added more depth to our side.

Rubi Lienert – Played games later in the season to add some depth to our list. A young player who played her junior netball for Tanunda. With the opportunity she showed the ability, skill and game sense to be a very good senior one player. Her left arm passing adding a different aspect to the team.

Heidi Dunn – Played some early games and after an injury went into the senior two's line up. She showed what she can produce by winning the association medal.

The 2013 season saw the team experience some highs and lows in our performances. The main thing that has come out of the season is the confidence and team belief that we are good enough to match it with the better sides in this competition.

There is still a need to improve and have a greater level of commitment to achieving the team goals. Adding depth to our squad and making it difficult to make the senior one team is what it will take for a premiership to result. We must have a unified group with a team focus on achieving success. Everyone must be willing to give 100% towards the 2014 season if we are seriously going to push for a premiership season. It can be done.

It is important that we keep the squad together and add to it with the aim of improvement and creating pressure on securing a place in the senior one team. Our younger players will continue to mature and grow in confidence and our senior players will continue to mentor the youth and strive for success. There is light in the tunnel and I think everyone can see it.

Success is something that has to be worked hard for and isn't handed out on a plate.

Having high attendance rates at training, being team and club orientated and having a burning, united desire to achieve the ultimate reward must all be key components in 2014.

Team spirit, solidarity and belief in each other with a willingness to give as much as you can for the club will see us a long way down the road to getting that reward.

It is likely that there may be some player movements again leading into 2014. In saying that, the core group will stay together and continue to build on the foundations that have been put in place for a successful season ahead.

There are plenty of people who work tirelessly to run the TNC and they deserve to see the club achieve success just as much as the players. I would like to thank the two's coach, Jeanette Hooper, Toby Mifflin as the President and club trainer, Meagan Samain as team manager, Melissa Smith as primary carer and the committee.

2013 was a season of progress and we will continue to work on developing and promoting quality junior netballers. We must also have the right blend of experience and depth in the senior one side to be serious premiership contenders. Success breeds success.

María Fraser

Senior 2 Coach: Jeanette Hooper

The Team: Tam Auricht Lauren Martin Team manager: Megan Samain

Lisa Crouch Emma Schilling
Heidi Dunn Brooke Stiller
Chloe Frentsch (VC) Bec Terwel (C)
Megan Samain (Emergency Player)

The Winners: Best & Fairest – LAUREN MARTIN

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - TAM AURICHT

Most Consistent - HEIDI DUNN

From the outset, I was very excited with this group of girls, and my beliefs about what they could achieve for Tanunda Netball Club.

As a team, we were very unsettled at the beginning of the season. With my absence due to family illness for the first 2 rounds, the coaching role was temporarily filled by the Senior 1 Coach - Maria Fraser, and for that I am grateful for her stepping in and overseeing my leadership. To the girls' credit, Round 3 versus Angaston, we refocused, regrouped, and from this point it was onward and upward for this team.

When we defeated Freeling in Round 4, this was a huge turning point in the group's self belief. For the first time, the girls showed me that they "felt" their strengths and immediately wanted to build on them. We then went on to defeat South Gawler in Round 6 (who incidentally finished second at the end of the minor rounds). To defeat this well oiled South Gawler side was a commendable achievement.

Opposition coaches were starting to take notice of Tanunda Senior 2's. That alone, was very rewarding for me as a coach. Unfortunately as the season went on, we dealt with a lot of illness, and soreness, but despite this, the core group of girls remained largely the same. All players just wanted to play netball. They wanted to play netball for each other and developed a strong bond. There was an obvious mutual respect for each other - such a valuable asset for any team.

To finish equal 4th (but 5th due to percentage) was a bit of a disappointment. The whole team believed we could make finals. As a group, we started training twice a week, incorporating extra fitness and strength sessions on Tuesday nights in the last few weeks of the minor round. This team deserved to be playing finals, but unfortunately we needed one more win on the board to secure that 4th place.

To my girls, congratulations on a tough, but I think rewarding season. I truly hope I see you back here next year to pick up where we left off, and aim for a 2014 Premiership, which is with this group of girls, DEFINITELY on the cards.

Jeanette Hooper

Senior 3 Coaches: Alice Lindner & Brooke Stiller

The Team: Brooke Etscheid Gabrielle Marschall Team Manager: Alice Lienert

Ashleigh Fox Amy Sanders
Emma Hartnett Heidi Schmaal
Alex Hoffmann Abbie Von Bertouch

The Winners: Best & Fairest – ALEX HOFFMANN

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - BROOKE ETSCHEID

2ND Runner-Up – EMMA HARTNETT

Our Senior Three Team was such a great mix of girls this year. We had experience, youth and an encouraging and supportive team spirit. They were a pleasure to coach!

We showed great potential from the outset, and had many possible combinations throughout the court, but due to a few change ups throughout the senior teams, and players work commitments, we did struggle to find our feet a little, and seemed to lack the confidence to finish off each game strongly. However, we focused a lot on this throughout the season, and started to get some wins on the board in the later rounds against an extremely strong field of teams this year. The girls began to show some real determination out on the court and weren't afraid to work hard, and leave everything out there. That's what we like to see! And that's what it takes to win.

We worked a lot on fitness this year at training, with circuit work featuring every week to keep us running strongly throughout the game. This combined with plenty of court time to give a new group of girls some experience working together as a team.

There were so many positives to take from the 2013 season, our youngest player was 14 years old and it is fantastic to see the future of Tanunda netball club looking so incredibly strong through these young girls. Giving them the opportunity to play with, and be guided by some of our veterans, with their experience and patience, is something that is vital to our future success as a club. It is wonderful to see these girls making their way up the ranks of the senior teams as they gain match experience and confidence.

Trophy winners for the season:

Best and Fairest: Alex Hoffmann- Alex (who was also the team captain) consistently went out and played at a high level running a full 4 quarters every week at C. Alex's strengths were not only her speed and agility but her ability to stop the oppositions flow down the court. Alex provided her team mates with support and encouragement on and off the court, her voice could always be heard and her positive encouragement always gave the girls a boost when needed.

Runner up Best and Fairest: Brooke Etscheid- Brooke is our veteran who provided advice, encouragement and support to our younger team members. She had a consistent year and stood up against some extremely strong opponents while continuing to hold her ground every single week.

2nd runner up Best and Fairest: Emma Hartnett- Emma was our youngest team member who at 15 shows maturity beyond her years. A new player to the club and after being shuffled around joined our team and immediately fit in. Her versatility and natural netball brain meant that Emma was a real asset to our team. It was a pleasure to watch Emma develop her confidence and voice throughout the season and we can see great things for Emma in the future.

Finally we would like to thank Alice Lienert for her support and organizational skills on Saturday which was a huge help and to the Senior 4 team who provided much needed support on the bench and court when our numbers were low.

Alice Lindner & Brooke Stiller

Senior 4 Coach: Dianne Bartsch

The Team: Demi Alcorn Toni Katzorke Team Manager: Kieran Roche

Dianne Bartsch Brianna Kaye
Sue Battersby Rachel Noack
Kelly Buckby Ashleigh Seedsman

Brooke Katzorke

The Winners: Best & Fairest – TONI KATZORKE & RACHEL NOACK

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – SUE BATTERSBY Coaches Trophy – ASHLEIGH SEEDSMAN

I had a hard job at the start of the season as only 3 players from the previous Senior 4 team remained and this left me with selecting a new squad. We had 2 new girls to the club and players from Senior 3, Senior 4 and Senior 5 all mixed together. This meant getting a game play organised and checking skill levels, so we were all on the same page.

We finished the year with 6 wins and 10 losses. Not bad for a team that was re-building and we did have our opportunities during the year. We were definitely up against sides that had played together for several seasons. Our second half of the year was better than the first, as with time the team jelled, but there were moments of lapsed concentration that cost us. For a while it looked like we could scrap into finals, but an unexpected loss to Freeling made that a harder task than ever.

We had a few injuries during the year, Brianna with an ankle and then sick, Ashleigh had her wisdom teeth out, and then played the season out with a strapped hand and shoulder, and Toni injured her ankle. Considering all this girls, you should be proud of your efforts, as we didn't get a chance to have a set side. Everyone did their job though, and camaraderie was great.

Our last game of the season saw us have a bit of muck around and the girls were very nervous about it. At training they had all wanted to have a go at being a goalie and I didn't have time to put them all there. So I told them that if we were up by plenty at half time I would put players into some different spots. Come half time we were up and I put Toni into goals with Brooke, and shuffled players around, keeping some basic structure. Then the last quarter, I put Demi into goals and moved things around again. To everyone's credit, you all continued to do your best even though Nuriootpa could see we were having fun and we still won those last 2 quarters.

Finally I would like to saw a very big THANK YOU to Kieran Roche, who was my assistant during the year. Kieran was at most trainings and took over most of the paperwork on Saturdays, and didn't lose any pens! This helped me heaps, as with training and playing there was enough to do.

I must also thank Sharon Seedsman, who umpired for us each training and even became an extra player when there weren't enough for a drill.

Also thank you to Senior 3's, Alice, Brooke & Alice for training with us and clearing the courts each Saturday, and Senior 5's for game practice.

Finally to the Senior 4's. Hope you enjoyed your season and got some fitness, friendships and maybe even learnt something new. Let's hope you all return next year so we can keep the same team together.

Dianne Bartsch

Senior 5 Coach: Paula Fechner

The Team: Nerida Allert Natalie Payne Team Manager: Sue Martin

Tracey Hoklas Melissa Skarstrom Lydia Kalleske Lisa Stott

Linda Morgan Nicole Owen

The Winners: Best & Fairest – NERIDA ALLERT

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - TRACEY HOKLAS & KIRSTIE VERRALL

Kirstie Verrall

Most Consistent - NICOLE OWEN

Starting the round with a thrashing against Willaston didn't drop the girl's spirits, but gave them an idea of the tough competition we were going to come up against. Round 1 had some testing games, the girls were still gelling as a team, and the coach was still working out the best combinations. Losing 3 games by 1 goal put some thought into how they needed to play to come away with wins, and the answer was to score our own goals and make the most of situations when in front, keeping cool heads and playing our own game, not falling into the trap of playing their game. Losing by 1 after being in front for part or most of the game I think gave the girls a fighting spirit for round 2! It certainly gave me the coach some insights on how you should or shouldn't change a team, and where the girls best fitted on the court together.

Round 2 we set out expecting Willaston to thrash us again, we took the court showing improvement, only losing by 10 not 30 something like in round 1! The girls took the court for the rest of the season with fire in their bellies and a bit of 'sticky' coming away with wins to the teams that we lost by 1 to, like we knew we could if we just kept to our game. A proud coach!

Losing Nat and Kirstie for a few weeks dropped us to 7. Due to an illness, we were down to 6, so Kimberly Dowler kindly filled in for us from Inters and played an absolute boomer of a game at WD against Freeling. Well done, and thanks Kimberly. Losing Lydia in the Centrals game to an ACL injury gave Kate Osborne her chance to shine in Div 5, which that she did, and at WD too. Thanks Kate. Then Natalie moved to almost a different state for work, and didn't come back to netball from her holiday in Croatia (until the first final), and Lydia with her knee left us with 7 again, so we recruited a couple of benchers from div 7. Due to more injuries and back down to 6, the benchers took court and helped us to secure 4th position on the ladder. A huge thanks to Ashlee Hartnett, and Brie Harvey for your support to our team, especially Brie for taking the time to come and just sit on the bench in case required, especially for the finals. A huge Effort by our team and benchers to make finals, and a big congratulation for getting there, it wasn't easy from the side line!!!

It has been a pleasure to be given the opportunity to coach such a great bunch of girls. Some of you have showed so much improvement since the beginning of the season, it's a great feeling as a first time coach to have the support from your players, and getting the team to the finals. It was all from your hard team work on the court.

A few special Thanks, A big thanks to my holidaying team manager Sue Martin. We have very different ideas sometimes, but it's great to have a different opinion and someone to talk with, I wouldn't have done it without you by my side. And let's not forget the div 4 and 7 girls for training with us, and the div 1/2 girls, Toni Martin and Nicole Crouch who came out to train with us for finals.

To Sharon, your umpiring support on training nights didn't just stop at umpiring. You almost always had a kid if not beside you with a whistle to blow at goals and C passes, they were at the other end kicking the footy to you. A very patient lady who loves red frogs! Thanks Shazza! All of the Saturday umpires, thanks for giving up your time to support our club.

Our cheer squads, Levene with her voice who the girls loved to hear and missed her the odd time she wasn't there. To Peter, making just about every move on the side line that Nez would make on the court, very funny. Tracey's jinx Mark with his champers, and Linda's Pink Lady Day cheer squad and anyone else who was there to cheer us on. And to all the other volunteers, players or parents and friends of the club who put in their time to do fundraising, attend events and support our club. A club like ours doesn't run well without people volunteering their time or expertise Without members (players) volunteering, or our valuable sponsors we wouldn't have funds to purchase equipment. Thanks to the sponsors who supported us this year.

Last and not least, my Div 5 team, you were awesome, and Congratulations again for making finals.

Paula Fechner

Senior 6 7 Coach: Debbie Miles

The Team: Kerryl Dale Sophie Kuchel Team Manager: Jodie Parker

Katherine Durant Kirsty MacCulloch
Ashlee Hartnett Kate Osborne
Brie Harvey Annabelle Wood
Teena Harvey Melissa Wright

The Winners: Best & Fairest – KATE OSBORNE

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - ASHLEE HARTNETT

2nd Runner Up – SOPHIE KUCHEL

With no one offering to coach this team I took on the challenge of coaching again rather than team manager. It was probably a bigger challenge for the girls to have a coach that had not worked with them before and players who had not played together or were had not played for several years.

The first five weeks we played as a senior 6 team which was tough for the girls especially the first match against an experienced Willaston team. We felt senior 6 was not our level of play and so applied to the BL&G Netball Association to be promoted to senior 7. This was a good decision as from then on the girls improved each week. Alas a win was not to happen but our deficit was not as bad in the second half of the season, and opposition teams commenting on our improvement was a great encouragement. With all Clubs not having a senior 7 team and then Nuriootpa forfeiting the last match our season came to an abrupt end.

It was great to see all the girls combine together as a team despite their varying levels of skill. I appreciated the girls all being open and honest to the decisions made with the team selection and their willingness to adapt as needed. If their enthusiasm and desire to get a win counted for anything they should have been higher up the ladder than sixth position.

CONGRATULATIONS to **Kate Osborne** winner of *Best & Fairest* – her leadership on court, her drive for the ball and the way she plays such a tight defensive game but always in a non-aggressive way this win was well deserved.

Ashlee Hartnett - Best & Fairest runner-up – such a quiet player who let nothing faze her always had a smile. Unable to attend every training due to her commitment playing with the Rubies tea, in Adelaide and named as captain of this state team. Another versatile player who could play goals or centre court.

Sophie Kuchel - 2nd runner-up – returning to play with the Club after many years, she was a versatile player being able to play both goals and defense. Despite an ankle injury side-lining her for several weeks I thought she had a good solid season.

I extend my thanks to Jodie Parker, team manager, for her support and encouragement thru the season. To all the umpires thru the season, we appreciated your expertise with the whistle. To Paula and the senior 5 girls for training with us and especially family and friends who supported from the sideline thru the season – thank you.

I hope that all the girls enjoyed the season and come back for season 2014.

Debbie Miles

Intermediate 1

Coaches: Kate Jolly & Bec Terwel



Back: Kate Jolly (coach), Maddie Maitland, Emily Bert, Sophie Alderslade, Kimberley Dowler, Hannah Casey, Bec Terwel (coach)
Front: Lahni Smith, Elisa Trotta, Mikaela Marshall, Alex Miller, Amy Mickan

The Winners: Best & Fairest – EMILY BERT

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – ALEX MILLER Coaches Trophy – HANNAH CASEY

The Inter One team for 2013 consisted of a talented group of ten enthusiastic players. It was evident at the start of the year, during the pre-season fitness and skill building sessions, that this group of girls had the potential to play in finals. The prospect of this occurring was incredibly exciting in so many ways, but it was not going to come easy and there would be disappointments along the way. As you can imagine, trying to give equal court time when you have ten players and maintain enough wins to make finals was no easy feat. Thankfully, we were fortunate enough to have a playing group that were willing to see the importance of playing for one another.

We had a very successful start to the season winning all games except one in the first round. The second round saw a number of teams showing obvious improvements to their game which proved to be more challenging. Unfortunately we became slightly complacent when approaching Nuriootpa in Tanunda's final game of the round (before the bye). The loss of this game combined with the bye in the final round saw us dropping from second place to third and ending our hopes of a second chance in the finals. Nevertheless we knew we would have the opportunity to face Nuriootpa again in the first final and we were more determined than ever to make up for our last meeting. Our approach against all teams throughout the year was to stick to the things we could control and not worry about things that couldn't be changed. Our goal each game was to play disciplined netball and avoid unnecessary infringements in order to maximise our scoring opportunities and this was no different in the final. However, this didn't always go to plan and is something that will need to be continuously addressed. At the end of the third quarter we were down by five goals and it was evident that changes needed to be made. We needed fresh legs to run out the game and it proved to have made a difference, only losing to Nuriootpa by one goal on a penalty shot. It was Deja vu for those who played in last years Junior One Preliminary Final. Despite the loss Bec and I were very proud of the girls' efforts. From the warm up to the moment the girls stepped on the court they played their hearts out and we could not have been prouder of the fight they showed to come back.

We would like to commend this awesome playing group on their efforts and the way they represented the Tanunda Netball Club this year. The commitment, enthusiasm, sportsmanship and open-mindedness (willingness to take on board new ideas and adjust their game to benefit the playing group) shown by each player was pivotal to our success. Most importantly we would like to thank them for their fantastic sense of humour and friendships built along the way. They truly are a tight-knit group and we encourage them to keep playing together for as long as they can.

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of the parents who gave of their personal time to drive the girls to and from trainings and games each week. The success we had would not have been possible without the commitment and support shown throughout the season. We hope the girls come to understand the important role parents play in team success!

Congratulations to the trophy winners.

Kate Jolly & Bec Terwel

Intermediate 2 Coach: Elle Moreton



Back: Antonia Turley, Emma Graves, Nikia Goers, Ruby McLennan, Eleanor Heidrich, Molly Clementson-Duncan, Elle Moreton (coach)
Front: Ashleigh Harris, Olivia Todd, Bethany Roether, Danielle Booms-Davies

The Winners: Best & Fairest – NIKIA GOERS Team Manager: Lisa Heinrich

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – DANIELLE BOOMS-DAVIES

Coaches Trophy – EMMA GRAVES

What a FUN, competitive year we had this year... Being my second year coaching for Tanunda, I was more determined and confident when coaching the Inter 2 girls, and I was adamant to better not only myself as a coach but also the team. Throughout the year I have not wiped the smile off my face... these ten girls were an absolute hoot to coach, with each and every girl having their own personalities and willing to let them shine.

This year saw us win 8 games out of a potential 14, with the Gawler teams proving to be the strong competition in the association. We ended up fourth on the ladder this year, after the minor round and being lucky enough to play in the finals. The first semi we played against Gawler Centrals, who we hadn't beaten in the minor round, to come home with a convincing win by 8. I was very proud of the girls in how they came together and played such a wonderful game. We then met Gawler South in the Prelim.... Also of which we hadn't beaten in the minor round... I must say the first three quarters were less than perfect and we entered the fourth quarter down by 10.... After a razz up at three quarter time, we played some brilliant netball to only go down by 2, if only we had two more minutes, I think we would've been in the Grand Final. Next year we will get there \odot

I would like to thank Kate Jolly, Bec Terwel and the Inter 1 team who trained with us this year every week, your support and knowledge was so wonderful to have and utilize. The parents each week who came out to support the girls, is always great to see and hear – and I think it lifts the girls to a whole new level of play knowing you are all so proud of them.

Lastly I want to thank my Team Manager, Lisa Heidrich for her support throughout the year and her wonderful organisation – it was nice to know I didn't have to worry on a Saturday morning, and Nerida Harris for being our PC, you were always their each week and even though we don't like giving you a job, it was always nice to know if someone injured themselves you were always there to help.

I had three stand out players this year who were all very evenly matched, and with one point dividing these three girls at the end it literally came down to the last game and who got the points. The girls have shown so much enthusiasm, versatility and passion for the game.

Best and Fairest – This year's B&F started the season off a little quiet, but as the weeks moved on, she came out of her shell more and more and became quite a little character.... This young lady showed awesome versatility and passion for netball. She played most of her season in defence but when she was needed was always willing and excited to go into goals. This player has been a pleasure to coach and I hope she continues to play as I think she has a lot to offer the Tanunda netball club. Congratulations to Nikia Goers.

Runner up Best and Fairest – Well she would have to be the fittest player on the team and was always giving 120% whether it be at training or on Saturdays. This player had never played netball until this year and at the start of the season we knew she had something special to bring to her team. Once we were past learning the rules of netball she became a very valuable player on the team and played some fantastic netball in the centre court. Congratulations Danielle Boom Davies.

2nd **Runner Up Best and Fairest** – This young player came out again this season with even more to give, she is a very fit young player always going that extra mile and her balance is amazing, some of the balls she turned over were a something to admire. She also did extremely well this year at an association level coming third in the association votes. I should also just add that this is only her second year playing netball. Congratulations Emma Graves

I'd like to thank all the girls on the team, I am so extremely proud of how far you have come this year and I hope you enjoyed the year as much as I did. Well done on a fantastic effort and I hope you are all coming back next year.

Elle Moreton

Junior 1



Back: Ashleigh Fox (coach), Abby Moore, Lauren Hutton, Caitlin Scott, Alex Hoffmann (coach) Front: Jemma Heuzenroeder, Annabel Smart, Zoe Healy, Jordan Turley, Katelyn Bert Absent: Holly Edson

The Winners: Best & Fairest – CAITLIN SCOTT

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – LAUREN HUTTON

Most Determined – ZOE HEALY

The 2013 season was full of its ups and downs, but we managed to have a reasonably successful season.

We started the season focusing on our passing, positioning and footwork and gradually worked our way into full court play. As well as learning new skills on the netball court we also focused on game fitness so they were able to run four consistent quarters of netball on a Saturday. Even though they didn't like the fitness, it definitely paid off, as the intensity of their netball improved each week.

The girls were very positive throughout the season and were always willing to learn.

Most weeks we never had our full team due to injury, illness and holidays which made it difficult to keep the momentum going week to week. We won 9 games and lost 7 games in the minor season and unfortunately only missed out on finals by one point.

Thank you to Caitlin Scott and Holly Edson for leading our team as the captains this year. You both did a great job encouraging the girls each week.

Thanks to the parents for your assistance with scoring and timing throughout the season, it has made our job a lot easier with all the support. We would like to say a big thank you to Justine Smart who was our Primary Carer this year.

Congratulations to our trophy winners this year; Best and Fairest – Caitlin Scott, Best and Fairest Runner Up – Lauren Hutton and Most Determined – Zoe Healy.

Last of all, thank you very much to the Junior One girls for the 2013 season. It has been a pleasure to coach you all and we wish you all the best with your netball in the years to come.

Ashleigh Fox & Alex Hoffmann

Junior 2 Coach: Brooke Edson



Back: Maggie Henschke, Ella Slape, Shannon Smith, Zoe Nokes Absent: Brooke Edson (coach)
Front: Brooke McCudden, Tayla Pudney, Jadzia Gladigau, Holly Perrett

The Winners: Best & Fairest – ELLA SLAPE Team Manager: Shannon Turner

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – ZOE NOKES Best Team Player – SHANNON SMITH

At the start of the 2013 season the team consisted of 9 girls who came from a combination of different teams from the previous year. One of our girls moved up to the junior 1 team during the season and this made our team a steady 8 girls although there were times when we needed to draw up from the Sub Juniors. We had some injuries during the season including 2 girls who broke their arms. The girls were a pleasure to coach as they were enthusiastic and it was lovely to see a group of girls who enjoyed the game so much.

Throughout the season we worked on a range of different skills to improve the girls game. One skill that we focused on at every training was leading towards the ball. Although there were times when there were absences at training, the girls who did attend put a lot of effort into improving their skills.

This season we finished in equal fourth position on points with South Gawler, but fifth position on percentage, which was a great effort. It was great to see on game days the girls applying skills that we had talked about before the game. The girls were great at encouraging each other on and off the court. Although I wasn't there to see them to the end of the season I am very proud of the improvement that the girls made to their game.

Well done to our captains Jadzia and Shannon. You did a great job at encouraging and leading the girls this season. Also congratulations to Ella Slape who came 2nd runner in the Association in the junior 2 competition this year.

Thank you to Ashleigh and Alex for all your support and advice throughout the season and assisting when I was away. Thanks to the junior 1 girls who we trained with every week. Also thank you to Jo Buck for taking my team when I was away, I'm sure you would have been a great mentor to the girls. Thanks to our team manager Shannon Turner, your organisation and support throughout the season was fundamental. Without the parents scoring and timing each week and the support they showed me throughout the season things wouldn't have flowed as well, thank you.

Thanks girls for a memorable season. You have been incredible to coach.

Brooke Edson

Sub-Junior 1 **Coach: Karen Fox**



Back: Amy Mickan (assistant coach), Maegen Klingner, Stella Fraser, Charlie Bittner, Laura Ide, Karen Fox (coach) Front: Elise Reed, Taylor Mifflin, Alanah Martin, Sadie Lienert, Maeve Clementson-Duncan

Team Manager: Mandy Martin

The Winners: Best & Fairest -LAURA IDE & SADIE LIENERT

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - STELLA FRASER Coaches Trophy - CHARLIE BITTNER

This year the Sub Junior 1 team had an outstanding season, finishing as undefeated premiers.

During trials earlier in the year, it was evident that this team had the potential to be very successful. Four of the players were in Sub Junior 1 in 2012; four players came from a year in Sub Junior 2 and one player returned to the club after playing in Adelaide. I contacted Amy Mickan, one of our Intermediate players and asked her if she would like to be assistant coach of this team. Amy's skills were greatly appreciated by myself, the players and their parents. As Amy has played both in defence and as a goalie, she was particularly helpful to the players who played at each end of the court.

Throughout the season the girls were all very focused and keen to improve their skills. Their footwork and passing was already of a high standard, and therefore we were able to focus on other skills such as setting up for a lob pass, front cuts, blocking, using your body to keep position and reading the play to anticipate where a pass might go. The attitude of the girls at training sessions was exemplary and it was exciting to watch them learn new skills and put these skills into practise during their matches.

The Sub Junior 1 competition was quite varied. We won eight games by margins greater than thirty goals, and our closest result in the minor round were two wins by thirteen goals. It would have been easy for the girls to become complacent about their skills, but there was very much a willingness to achieve as best they could, and sometimes being able to train against both the Junior and Intermediate teams enabled them to challenge themselves even more. We were lucky to have three talented girls who shared the role of goalies - Charlie, Alanah and Stella. Their shooting in all games was extremely accurate and contributed to our high scores in many games. Our centre court players – Sadie, Elise, Taylor and Maegen, played skillfully all year and are to be commended for the second efforts as well as their strong defensive pressure. Maeve, Laura and Stella played in defence and placed a lot of pressure on their opponents, intercepted many balls and blocked and rebounded strongly.

We came into the finals series as favourites and played Willaston in the Second Semi Final, winning by twenty three goals. We played Willaston again in the Grand Final. Their team played significantly better in this game and they had a surge in the second quarter, with an equal number of goals scored to us. However, a great effort in the third quarter put us well ahead and we finished the game by thirteen goals. Charlie Bittner was selected by the umpires as the best player on the court and well deserves this award.

Another deserving recipient was Sadie Lienert, who won the trophy for the most outstanding player in the Sub Junior 1 competition. Sadie had a great season as a centre court player and polled votes consistently. Our team won the Sub Junior 1 goal throwing competition and was presented with a trophy at the Association dinner.

Unfortunately I was unwell again early in the season and I thank Jo Buck and Amy for assuming responsibility for the SJ 1 team during this time. It was very exciting to have all three Sub Junior teams in the Grand Final this year and I congratulate the club on this achievement. Thanks also to Mandy Martin who was our Primary Carer during matches, Robyn Lienert who was our Team Manager and Maria Fraser who volunteered to umpire our game each Saturday. Many thanks also to the parents of the girls who took on scoring and timing duties and who were very encouraging of their daughters and their team mates, and also of the coaches. Coaching in finals is very exciting but also emotionally draining and difficult. I appreciate the support given to Amy and me when we had to make decisions about players and positions during these matches.

A final thank you to the nine girls who made this premiership possible. This is the first premiership team I have ever coached and I am so proud of the players' dedication to improving their skills, their desire to be successful and their outstanding team

spirit. Let's go Maggie's, let's go, 00 00! Karen Fox

Sub-Junior 2 Coach: Jo Buck



Back: Jasmine Martin, Lucy Madden, Aspen Wood, Bethany Lennon, Matilda Allert, Jo Buck (coach) Front: Paige Maitland, Abby Brooks, Hana Pitman (captain), Caitlin Hore, Bethanie Lange

The winners: Best & Fairest – ASEN WOOD

Best & Fairest Runner-Up - HANA PITMAN

Coaches Trophy – ABBY BROOKS

2013 has been a great year for our juniors overall but especially our Sub-Juniors, with all three teams making the Grand Final. Congratulations to the Sub-Junior 1's on their Premiership and the win on Grand Final Day for the Sub-Junior 2's was a great effort.

We had a very good season. We had a draw in Round 1 and then won our next two games convincingly. We played Freeling in Round 4 and they gave us some very good lessons on how to play netball. Unfortunately for Freeling their club had to do some shuffling which meant they no longer fielded a Sub Junior 2 side. We then won the next 10 games without too much opposition. So to lose the last game of the season by 19 goals, against Nuriootpa, really put the cat amongst the pigeons. The loss meant we finished second on the premiership ladder and had some work to do in the next four weeks.

We played the second semi at Nuriootpa versus Nuriootpa. Our aim was to improve on our last encounter. We achieved this aim by only losing by 13 goals but really had to think hard about what had to be done to beat Nuri should we meet them again. But we couldn't even worry about this until we got through the preliminary final against Centrals. We'd only beaten Centrals by 6 goals in round 1 and 2 goals in Round 2. So we knew we had to work hard. We came out of the blocks well leading 7 – 3 at the first break and we went to a 6 goal lead by half time. But we were scoreless in the third and it was a one goal ball game going into the final quarter. It was not pretty netball with both teams making many errors and at the end of full time the scores were all tied up. We played extra time and won by the narrowest of margins to proceed into the Grand Final.

Grand Final Day was a beautiful day for netball. The girls were pumped and we knew our one chance was to apply lots of pressure on the Nuri girls as they were very confident. Should the game be close, which they were certainly not expecting, our experience the previous week may just prove to be the turning point. We started well and were even at the first break. Nuri had a bit of a surge in the second quarter and took a five goal lead at half time. But the girls dug deep in the third quarter and fought back to a one goal lead at three quarter time. Nuri was struggling to find something special and our girls played some great netball in the final quarter to win by 2 goals. It was truly a special moment. Congratulations to Abby Brooks who won Best on Court.

Congratulations to my trophy winners....Aspen Wood who won Best and Fairest, Captain Hana Pitman who won Runner-up Best and Fairest and Abby Brooks who won Best Team player. Special congratulations to Aspen who won the Association Best and Fairest for the Sub-Junior 2 Division.

Special thanks to all the parents for their support of their girls throughout the season. Thanks to Michelle Pitman for being Team Manager and ensuring we had all duties covered.

Thanks also to Karen, Amy, Abby and Lauren for trainings and support throughout the season. We had a nice blend of youth and experience in the sub-junior coaching team and we worked well together. Thanks too to Maria Fraser who was always about ready to umpire at our trainings.

Thanks again to the committee for all their work throughout the season.

But most of all Congratulations to each and every player in this team for achieving the ultimate team reward – PREMIERS 2013.

Jo Buck

Sub Junior 3

Coaches: Lauren Hutton & Abby Moore



Back: Lauren Hutton (coach), Abbey Underwood, Chloe Wastell, Lane Blieschke, Sarah Battersby, Lucy Anderson, Abby Moore (coach)
Front: Georgia Germein, Stephanie Mifflin, Lauren Pullan, Olivia Stutley, Maisie Wellesley-Davies

The winners: Best & Fairest – SARAH BATTERSBY

Best & Fairest Runner-Up – CHLOE WASTELL Coaches Trophy – GEORGIA GERMEIN

This year the sub junior 3 team consisted of 10 talented girls.

We were lucky enough to make it to finals and carried that through to the grand final. Unfortunately we were unlucky and just missed out on being the 2013 premiers, but being runners up is a wonderful achievement.

During the season the girls started to find their preferred positions.

Our defenders consisted of Lucy Anderson, Olivia Stutley, Stephanie Mifflin, Chloe Wastell and Lauren Pullan. These girls always worked well as a team. They all talked and communicated beautiful and our defense turned the ball over regularly. These girls made a last wall to stop the opposition and often succeeded and later scored a goal.

Our attackers consisted or Sarah Battersby, Lane Bliescke, Georgia Germein, Abbey Underwood and Masie Wellsey-Davies. These girls made the game flow. They had a good sense of the rules and throughout the season become pros at leading, dodging and passing. These girls all communicated to move the ball to the shooters and all of them played a part in getting us to the grand final.

When it came to the presentation of trophies we had the hard decision of choosing a coaches award participant as all the girls played a brilliant season. Congratulations to all the trophy winners.

It was an amazing first year coaching and thank you to everyone who helped us get here. We have had a great time coaching this season and mentoring these wonderful girls, they were always enthusiastic and lovely to be around. We wish them the best if luck with their future netball seasons.

Hope to see you playing netball at Tanunda next year.

Lauren Hutton & Abby Moore

Primary 1 Coach: Anne-Marie Reichstein



Back: Anne-Marie Reichstein (coach), Chantelle Linton, Ashleigh Chishaya, Sophie Riethmuller, Katelyn Young, Margot Pick, Melody Klingner Front: Charlotte Bosward, Eliza King, Rachel Hall, Cassidi Matte, Emma Hartigan

I have been so privileged to have had the opportunity to work with such an energetic, friendly, positive and hard working group of girls this year. Many of the girls have been coached by me for five years and it has been so exciting to see their skills develop over that period of time. To know that I have helped them in some way to gain a passion for the game of netball has made my time so worthwhile and incredibly rewarding.

This season has been very successful with the girls showing a more determined response to trainings which enabled them to work more cohesively on Saturdays. We worked on developing their skills in attacking and defending whilst introducing strategies and game plans. Given the large group, I decided to rest one player each week and rotate ten players on game day; a decision the parents were also happy to support. This proved to be quite challenging, however the girls learnt very quickly that they needed to support the team by playing any position that they were given. Each girl was given the opportunity to develop a number of positions so that by the end of the season, I had the luxury of placing the girls either as attackers or defenders or both on the same day. This versatility enabled the girls to achieve successful results this year with many games in our favour. Despite the fact that we didn't officially score, our wins were still noted.

The girls always treated me with the utmost respect and I have certainly cherished the close connection that I have established with them. They were such a wonderful group who worked so positively together. Given that I always had to rotate players on a regular basis; they learnt to accept any bib that I handed them and consequently went on to play the game to the best of their ability as a solid unit. Their amazing sportsmanship towards the umpires and the opposition must also be noted. Never did they make negative remarks regarding the umpires or attempt to disrespect their opponents on the court. Even when the scoreboard was so obviously in favour of the opposition (0-22 against South Gawler), they were able to hold their heads up high and walk away with a smile of their face!! I admire that special quality within this group and I hope they will always continue to play the game with integrity and a sense of fun!

Throughout my time as a coach, I have strived to adopt an equitable and fair approach towards the team selection and have aimed to develop the girls' netball skills whilst still having fun! All of the girls have improved so much and they deserve to be congratulated for their successful season.

It has also been an honour to meet such an amazing group of supportive parents who never complained (or if you did, I never heard them!!). I always felt that they were there to support their daughter's as well as myself 110%, therefore they made my job so much easier.

I would like to sincerely thank Serena Linton for her dedicated umpiring efforts over the past couple of years. Netballers can't develop their skills if they don't have a strong, effective umpire to consistently teach them the rules of the game. Serena enabled this team to extend their skills and I am so grateful that she offered to volunteer her time every week for this important job. Thank you so much!!!

A huge thank you must also go to Lee-Anne Matte who enthusiastically took on the team manager's role this year. She enabled me to get on with the job of coaching whilst she went about organising the scorers, timers and team sheets. Thanks so much! I must also thank Donna Riethmuller for helping me with some Thursday trainings, filling in for me on Saturday's and generally

being my 'go to' person for advice with team selections and strategies. I really appreciated her honesty and enthusiasm. Thanks heaps for being there when I needed you!!

I also need to acknowledge Marie Thom, the Primary 2 coach who was such a delight to work with. Her positive, honest approach towards trainings and caring attitude towards the girls was a duly noted and I certainly enjoyed working with her every Thursday afternoon.

Finally, I would like to thank Deb Miles and Jo Buck for their continued support regarding any questions that I had towards coaching. Having people that you can rely upon in a club is very important and I thank them for listening to my concerns and being willing to help me whenever I needed it.

Clearly, 2013 has taken the girls and myself on an amazing journey; one that I will always remember and cherish. I wish them every success in the future and hope that they continue to love the game of netball as much as I do! Let's go Maggie's, let's go!

Anne-Marie Reichstein

Primary 2 Coach: Marie Thom



Back: Marie Thom (coach), Paige Pitman, Caitlin Lange, Rebecca Ide, Bethany Wood, Hayleigh McCormack Front: Tayla McCormack, Bethany Hayes, Stacey Thom, Georgie Smart, Florence Parker-Phillips, Madeline Fechner

Having twelve girls to play each week was going to be challenging, so in fairness to court time for the players, I decided to rotate the girls with two sometimes three players off each week. This worked well as all the girls had played the same number of court time and the same number of full games for the season.

Throughout the season we focused on leading to the ball, developing ball handling skills and concentration with different drills. We also focused on developing their ability to set up on court strategies with certain aspects of the game. This helped with the flow of their games and trying to prevent crowding on the court.

The girls played extremely well together as a team and pushed themselves under pressure situations.

They also played fantastically during the Primary Carnival event, which was a fantastic day!! I was proud of the girls for how they performed at the carnival and extremely proud finishing the day as runner ups. It was a fantastic effort and result, by all these budding future Tanunda netballers. They should all be proud of themselves.

A huge thank you to Anne-Marie Reichstein for her guidance throughout the season, especially training sessions. I learn't so much from her and she has been a fantastic mentor. Thank you so much.

The support from parents and family members throughout the season was fantastic. Their understanding towards having twelve players to rotate each week was well received, and I greatly appreciated this and thank them for all their help for the season and at the Primary carnival.

These twelve girls were very understanding with the large number of players to share out court time on Saturdays and also at training. They deserve a pat on the back!

They were eager, enthusiastic, well behaved and listened to instructions well. They were all an absolute pleasure and a privilege to have coached.

Marie Thom

NETTA 1 Coach: Denise Schultz



Back: Ella Habermann, Madeleine Eggleton, Lexie Marshall, Bonnie Graetz, Zoe Schiller, Viene Gladigau, Denise Schultz (coach)
Front: Zoe Schultz, Matilda Osborne, Sydney Schild, Charlotte Tonkin, Halle Martin, Hayley Ellis

The season began with a huge team of 12 girls. Many had played together last year but we also had a few new players. We worked on getting to know each other and improving the skills they had already learnt.

By the first game of the season the Netta 1 girls were very keen and excited to be playing their very first game of 2013. They all played amazing and worked well as a team.

As the season went on, all 12 girls continued to show great improvement in their ball skills and coordination. With every game played, the girl's knowledge became stronger and they began working together as a team. It was very clear that all the girls were learning how important each position was to the team and that they all had important roles in the game.

By round 2 it was great to watch the improvement in the game and see how well the girls moved the ball down the court. They began to gel as a team and work extremely well together throughout the game. Each week at training we had worked on the role of each position in the game. Their understanding of this became evident on the court.

With their parents cheering them on the sidelines, the girls confidence grew and we were able to see some fantastic netball being played.

I am very proud of all the girls and they should all be very pleased with the way they worked together.

Thank you to Zoe Schiller, Halle Martin, Madeleine Eggleton, Ella Habermann, Sydney Schild, Bonnie Graetz, Hayley Ellis, Matilda Osborne, Zoe Schultz, Viene Gladigau, Charlotte Tonkin and Lexie Marshall for being a great bunch of girls to coach and always giving your best efforts.

I believe each of them will go on to become fantastic players for the Tanunda Netball club. Thank you for a wonderful Season and good luck for next year.

Denise Schultz

NETTA 2 Coach: Sally McIntire



Back: Sally McIntire (coach), Dayna Mifflin, Lily Holmes, Kennedy Mifflin, Layla Grosser
Front: Georgia Battersby, Hannah Pullan, Erin Young, Teagan Manning, Emily Stutley, Erin Pratt Absent: Britt Thomas

NET-SET-GO



2013 Net-Set-Go Participants:

Back: Leila March, Poppy Combe, Meg Wood, Adelaide Schmidt, Olive Allert, Georgia Roberts,
Kimberley Cooper, Chelsea Morgan, Charlotte Marshall
Middle: Bridie Peady, Chloe Seabrook, Samantha Parish, Letisha Bartsch, Alice Hall, Imogen Fiebiger,
Macaylee Verhees, Front: Zoe Heidenreich, India Catford, Chantelle Baumann, Ayla Loan, Ivie Whitelum,
Scarlet Secomb, Abigail Fiebiger, Indiana Tamke Absent: Mia Moen
Coaches: Dianne Bartsch, Matilda Allert, Brie Harvey (absent)

THANK YOU TO DIANNE BARTSCH

who co-ordinated the Net -Set- Go program for this year. With 25 girls aged 6-8 years all eager and enthusiastic and ready to learn and improve their netball skills. 18 of these girls are eligible to commence Netta next season.